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IRTRODUCTION
This thesis presents the history and development of
Béuglaas Community Center. Looking at the recreation and
community facilities svailsble vrior to the establishment of
ths Bouglaas\aomﬁﬁmi%y Center, one can understand the need
that was partially met when the program of the Center was
originated. |

The establishment of this cémmuﬁity'santerkra@rgssnts
ésme of the phases of commuﬂiﬁy erganizaticn and the methods
that are involved in bringing about the objsctives of meny
gicups to reach a common goal th&t'is‘aatiafaatory.

The materisl praSénta&Tiﬁizhis'the$is wae secured
through newspaper filss;'interviewé with individuals who were
closely connected with éﬁe vafiéﬁa\§h§$és of the project,
information made availabls frs@iéﬁé fiies of the Champaign

Council of Social Agencies and Community Chest, and the suthor's

experisnce 58 a Field @brk_?lacement at Douglass Community Center.
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v Chapter I
THE BACKGROUND THAT LED TO THE ESTABLISEYEXRT OF
TEE DOUGLASS COHMUNITY CENTER

Characteristics of the Communities

The twin cities of Champaign and Urbana are located in
Rast ﬁsntral Tliinois approximastely one hundred twenty-eight milas
south of Ghie&ga. The cities are the home of the University of
Illinois which had during the school year 1947-48 a total of
21,159 iresident students plus an scademic and nonacademic staff
of 4,690.3 The activities of the University and the services
nesded by a body as large ss the students and staff is considersd
the primary interest of the communities,

| The seocond important interest is serving as a trading

c¢enter for & radius of thirty miles in what is considered one of

"the best land aress in the United States,

41though Champaign-Urbans cannot be cansidéréﬁ in-
dustrial cities, manufscturing 1s not negligible. Such products
as drop forgings, road machinery, semént products, bleachsrs,
soybean products, gloves, and scademic apparel are produced.,

The two cities havs separate local governments which

stimulates some rivalry, but there is cooperation smong the

¢itizens and organizations for the most part., The present

1 University of Illinois Registrar's office, ir. Ellington
3 Office of non&caﬁemiclParsannel, University of Illinois

Bureau of Institutionsl Ressarch, University of Illinois
) .

—
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population of the twin cities is sstimated to be nearly ssaventy
thousand, |

Within the twin cities the majority of the Hegro
ﬁcpulatiaa live in an area of the northeast corner of Chaspaign

and northwest corner of Urbana. The area extends north from

 ¥ashington Street, Champaign, which becomes Beslin Strest in

Urbana to the city limits about ssven or eizht blocks, sxtend~
ing %en to twelwve blocks aa&t and west. The Wegre population
in 1940 was 3,106 which was 5,5 percent of the gombined
population of the twin cities.® The total population of the
t9in cities has increased since 1940 to an estimated 53,000;
70,000 including the student enroliment.?

Housing conditions have teasn an acute problem for
meéb&r& of the community, but aég&aialiy for the Negro p@@ﬁlatisna
¥any Negro familles bave had to live in small orowded bomes
w;tggut‘the ma&ern-e@ﬁvaniencsa of running water or bathrooms.
ﬂéver&lvémalx ha#&gs~eaa be sesn standing on one normal sized lot.
These conditions make it difficult for the children and young
people to bave the necessary space in which to earry on their

fow activities.

Facilities Available in the Communities Prioz %o
Douglags Community Center

Recreation and community facilities prior to the

3 16th Census of the United States 1940, Second Series,
Characteristics of Population, prepared under supervieion of
Dr. Leon C. Trussdell, Chisf Statistice for Popul=tion. Ses
Appendix A& : h

4

Chamber of Commerce, Champaign, Illinois




establishment of Douglase Community Center ware relatively few.
Bouglasgs Park was the only recreational arsa provided for %éat
part of ths twin cities for masny years. The fagilities for the
Negre ?eung people and childiren mere limited too besozuse 0f;

some diserimination. Thers was no place %o hold dances or any

of their group activities. The taverns located in North
Champazign were the places that the young ;3aple’cou1& have a date

or epend their leisure time.>

Two centers were opsned in 1937. 1In May of that year
an education center® sponsored by the office of the County
Superintendent of Schools was opened at 707 North Fifth Street
in Champaign. It was primarily for adult participation. In-
struction classes were given daily in cooking, sgwing, dregss-
making, French, reading, arithmetic, English, Negro hista?y,
and hygiene. Manual training and 3 glee club were added some-
time later. The Education Center was in a house thst had bsen
repainted and repaired by interested persons in the community.
Some of the business firms had donated equipment.

It »as not until December of 1937, that 2 reereation
center’ was opened at 514 East Tremont Strest, Champaign, by the
Champaign Recreation Commission. The centsr was in a six room
house on the west side of Douglass Park. Thé Champaign-Urbana

Juniar Women's Club cocperated with the Recrsation Commission

5 Interview April 1948 witk ur. Lyle Gallivsn, Executive
Becretary, Champaign County Community Chest.

& Champaign-Urbana Courier Newspapsr, May 24, 1837.

- Op. eit. , November 30, 1337




in repairing snd furnishing the new center. The Douglsss

Arsa Committee directed the activities of the center. The
center provided a program of sceial activities, crafts, musie,
ﬁra&atia&, and leisure tiuwe asctivities for all ages.g The staff
aansis%s& of sizteen psopls financed by the ¥ P A and N Y ﬁ.?

_The program in Douglass Park Arsa prior $o the
establishment of the Tremont Center had been conducted in Lawhead
and ¥illard grade schools located in Ghawaaigaciﬁ

The pre=school program was aantinueﬁ at Lawhead school
aitsr the other genter sctivities were bsgun at ths Tremont
Center under the direction of one woman and with the cooperation
of the schoel principal. 4n Athletic program was continued at
¥illard school wusing the vlaygrounds when the waatheé garmittaﬁ;

The recreation program and pre-school program wers
partially finsnced by ths Works Project Administration funds
until they wers liquidated in 1943,

In 1240 the house at 514 East Tremont was resold %o
its previous owner which made it necessary to move the Center's
program to other guarters. Temporary facili%ies-war&»asaa in
the basewent of the C ¥ £ Church, corner of Fifth and Grove, one
block west of Douglass Park, ' The basement was swall and

inadequate, and therefors 11m1£s@ the sotivities that could be

& Champaign News-Oazette, November 19, 1937 ani Decamner 4, 1937.

€ Intervies with Hrs. Irms Bridgswater, Staff %ambar'?remaat
Center, and Douglass Center in 1845,

10 op.cit. , Novesmber 19, 1937

1 Interview with Miss Hazel Tungerich, Dirsctor of Recrsation

Comsission, Champaign, Illinois, February, 1948.
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carrisd on. Shuffleboard and pingpong were the games for which
thers was &@Qipm&ﬁf av&il&bi@. The %&man'g'activitiss centared
mainly around sewing with some handwork. Thes Center was housed
in the church basement for ons year, when ancother move was nade
to the American Legion Hall. The sctivitiss of the Center ware
iimited %o pingpong and dancing for the young people.

In Oetober, 1843, the Champaign Recreation Commission
opened a "youth center? entitled the Beardsley Center, 13034

North Champaign Street in Qham@aign.lz The Beardsley Center was

looated next to the Beardsley Psrk, Although the Center was
c&li@d & youth center, the program was to includle women. The
evenings were given to the junior and aighvsahgal age gweups.’
The women came to the Center in the afternoons until four
o'clock when the grade school children came until six. The
Center stopped operation when leadership was no longsr av&ilahle%a
With the war in 1941, thers cams 5 nead to supply
&étivities and faeilitise for the colored servicemen who were
being stationed at Chanute Fisld and st the University of
Illinois, in Champaign-Urbana. & U 8 O Center was sstablished
in the two basement roome of the Lawhead schocl in Champaign.
The Centar was used to some extent by the community, but the
program wae primarily for the ssrvicemen ' since the small gpace

#22 2 limiting factoer. One night 2 week was given %¢ the young

Champaign News-(azetts Newspaper, September 27, 1843.

Interview with Mr. Taylor Thomas, Director of Douglass
Center, July, 1948.




pecple., Ths U 8 O Center had been a substitute when Federal
Borks igency funds were not granted for a new U S O Building
that had been raquested by the Qh&mg@ign ﬁaarsagiah Comnisaion
and the Douglase Community asxvia$,ﬁxga$§zaﬁién.‘ flthouzh the
Negro citizens had begun thinking and working %éwaré a community
center in 1940, 1% was not until the rejsetion of the grant from
the Federal Works Agenoy that the Douglass Community Ssrvice

bsgan to work on a center through their own efforis.




Chapter I1
THE ESTABLISHMERT OF DOUGLASS COMMUNITY CENTER

Pilan for Community Center Origsinsted with j
~ 3he Negro Citizens ‘

Recognizing the need for recrsationsl and community
facilities that was existing in the %win oities, Ghaapaign and |
Urbsna, a2 group of Negro citizens met together in the Spring
of 1940 and organized s committes ¢alled the Douglass Community

Service Organization. 1Its purpose was to start scme movement

towards a community center building. The first step necessary
was the purchasing of ground upor which the bullding could be
erscted. In an open meeting of interested Negro citizenms held |
sometime later following the formation of the Douglass Community |
4 Service Grganiza%ian, plans were made to rajise the funds nseded
to purchase the lots adjacent %o Douglass Park at 510-513 East
Grove Strest in Champaign., These lots are on ths southwest
-corner of the Park. The amount of money necessary %o purchase
the lots was 2750.00. , |

| In thﬁjfirstAfinancial drive, contributions were |
received from individusls snd organizations in Champaipgn.
Entertainments and bensfits were given to help raise the woney.
Sufficient funds were raised as a result of this drive %o make
the first payment of $375.00 in July of 1941.

The next campaizn to secure funds was made in the

fa21l of 1241. The grimary purpose was to Tinish paving for the
lots. Any additional money that %as‘ecnﬁributga would be put ' |
into 2 bullding fund. On December 7, 1941, in the last meeting
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of the camgatgé, the committes membars were rejoicing that‘taaﬁ
bad reached their goal, when the attack on Pearl Harbor was,
announced. The committee did not know at that time what form
their plans could take in lizbt of the uncertain futurs.

Scveral months later in the sarly part of 1943, the
Douglass Comwunity Service Organization was advised by the
Champaign Recreation Commission that there was s possibility
»f receiving Federal assistance through the Federal Works
Agency to ersct & building which wounld then serve as a
gservicements eentsr for the duration of the war. After thes war,
the bullding could be used as a communlty centsr., The basis for
this recomsendation was the fact that Champaign and Urbana are
only 17 miles from Chanute Field, a permanent Aray Alr Bass,
andi nearer than any other citiss of similar siza. Many service-
men were also stationed 3t the University of Illinois losatsd in
Champaign-Urbana. Hen stationed at both places used the twin
citiss for thelr leisure time activities,

Representatives from the Champaign Recreation
Commission and the @cuélasa Community Service Grgaﬁizatima worked
several months compiling necessary informstion and drawing up s
petition which was presented to the Federal Works Agency in the
fall of 1943. ¥hen no definits word had been received concern-
in acceptance or rejsction, the Compittee asked to meet with a
government representative for a report regarding the patition.

A government representative came t0 Champaign and rsported to
the Comzmittee that thelr petition had been given carsful con=

slderation, but must be rejected becauss the number of Negro

i
|
|
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servicenen sitationed at Chanute Pisld 4id not warrant the gsdaral
grant for the servicemen's centsr. & minimun requirsment of

one thoussnd Negro servicemen was necsssary for establishment of
the center. Apparently at the tiwe the Federal Works Agency
ﬁaae its investigation there were less than that number.

Joint Plannine of Co- uﬁi%, Chest and Hegro '
' Citizens in the Communities. o

The Douglass Community Service Organization wmads no

further plans until July, 1943, when & meeting was held in the

Lawhead school building with repressntatives from the Champaign
County Home and War Chest. When the Douglass Community Ssrvice
Organization was asked if they wers etill interssted iam the
'sﬁrviaemaﬁ'g’and commanity cenber, they stoted that they were.
The Chest representstives sxpressed their willingness t@‘&gaist
in the redrafting of the petition and submitiing 1% sgain to the
Fedsral Worke Agenoy for funds, although ghsy had no assurance
that 1t would be granted,
To reopen the project, the Mayor of Champaign commun-

icated with ths Regional Diresotor of the Federal Works Agency
in Chicago early in the month of August, 1943, to ask for the
reoonsideration of the building projeet becsuse of the demands
the war had placed on the community.
| On August 34, 1943, the Regional Direetor of the
Federal Works Agency ackn@wleéga the reopsning of the praj&é#-anﬁ
indicated that the F ¥ A would need to know cerdain facts:

1. In what ﬁay‘ﬁhe‘ﬁar c@nn@atﬁénﬁeﬁﬁ had changsed sinég

the first submission of ths projsct.
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2., Reasons® supporting war connected need for Hegro

recreation Taciiities:
&. THumber of Negro troops siationed at Chanute i
Field.
b, Number of Negro sarvicemen who came %o l
. Champaign-Urbana from time %o time.
¢. General information which could be used in
- support of rajustification of project submitted, i
The aprileation to the Federal Works Ageney was for £18,500.00
as a part of the £323,800.00 necessary for the construction of -

a building for Wegro servicemen. The loocal comsunity had

agreed %o raise the remaining $14,100.00 necessary. Some con- RE

) T tributions had already besn giaﬁgedzl } %
(d - City Reersation Commission ' $3,500.00 ' *E
Champaign County-Home and War Chest  2,500.00 |

Citizens of Urkana : 2,000.00 |

The Hagrs arg&aizaﬁiéaﬁ of the twin cities had promised o {
make contridbutions. | |
The project had the backing of the twin cities and of
Ohanute Field. Ths B@b&a& City Council voted unanimously that
solicitations for contributione from the citizens of Urbana
could be made in the amount of $2,000.00 and thﬁ'méﬁﬁ&?ﬁ of the
Assocliation of Commeres pledzed themselves as oitizens of the

community %5 hslp mske such saliait&tieﬁg.a

1 ?habﬂhaapaigﬁ §a§a~§§zatta ﬁeﬁapayéf; Sé@témﬁsr 17, 1843,

N SLetter from Champsign Chamber of Comzerce to the War Department
e _ F WA, %a%hﬁagtﬁﬁ D ¢, January 18, lﬁéé ,
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The Champaign Chamber of Commerce wrots to the Fedsral
¥orks Agency and urgsd consideration of the federsl grant and
expressed their ﬁ@@?%f&tiﬁﬁ.s

Tha commanding officer of Chsnute Fisld gave his
ebagerati@n and sndorgsemsent %o tha praggatjsayiﬁg, ¥the temporary
facilities now available in 3 school building hsve provan
inadequate, The proposed comsiruction will maske it possible for
the community to provide the activities necessary 3o good morale
aad sf!iéigﬁay of our colored soldlsrs. It is balisved that
this construction is sssential to the war effors. Adagunts
facilities and programs are available on the fisld for the
colored soldisrs, but they are in need of off-nost accommodations.
Champalgn located about 17 miles from Chanute is the only
community #ithin 2 radius of 50 miles having an appreciable
colorad porulation. Satisfactory bus transportstion is im
operstion between Chanute Field and Champaign.® |

Copies of the forms for repetitioning were requested

and the information was compiled.

On September 10, 1943, the apnlication was sent %o %he
Regional Federal Works Agsney office in Chicago where it bhad
o be vpasssed on by thair board.

A week after the apolication had been submitted %io
the F ¥ A Regional office in Chicago 3 Teply was Teceived by
;Letter from Mr. Oscar Steer, Prasident of Urbana Associztion of

Commerce to Mr. Lvlie GCallivan Executivs secratar?, Communisy
Chest Assceciation, September 3, 1843,

Lettsr frox Mr. ¥Falter T. deysr, Colonsl Air Corps Commanding

g%%ﬁ3§3 %%?ld to ¥r. William S§. Robinson, Regional Federal Social

C&go, Illinais, September 8, 1843,
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the Chumpalign committee that the grant féx £18,500.00 to be used
in the construction of the bullding for Yegro soldiers was
anpurovad Ey them, but the final aporoval of the apnlication must
necessarily coxs from Washington, D. . national office.

' ®ith this encouragement, the Negro citizens begen

thelr solicitations for funds in October, 1943,

In sseking aceepiance of the project in Washingbon, -

#aay peopls were asked $o assist. Colonel ¥. B. Hayes who was

originally from the Champaign community was stationed at the

Pentagon Bullding, Washington, D. . He was ssked to hslp in
any #ay that he could to oresent ths nesed in Chawpnign as hes
knew 1% to be. Illinois Senator Scott Lucas was slss asked to
hslpy with the approval of the projsct that avaited its verdiot
in Washington. |
In the first part of November, 1943, ths Regional
Diresctor of the Fedsral Works agency notified tha Havor of
Champaign that the national office had disapproved the subjsct
project ¥without prejudice.® Without preiundice mesnt that the
War Department considared %the oresent reerestion Taoilities at
Champaign for the number of Hegro troops in the Chanute Field
area as being adequate at that time. They would, howsver,
reconsider the project in the svent that s definite war need
could be established for additional recreationsl facilities

for Hegro troops in skam@aiga.s_

2 Letter tc ¥r. R. L. Zombro, Mayor Protem, Champaign, Illinois

from ¥r. L. A. Gillett, Regicnal Director, Federal Works
Agency, Region IV, Chicago, November 4, 1843.
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#han the Fedasral Torks Ageney rajected %the apclication
on the ground $hat there was insufficisnt anusher of colorsd
goldiers and sallors stationed in $he area %o justify the sxpense
of a building, it allotted funds to operats the Lawhaad service-
men's center inm two rooms of the bassment of the Lawhead grade
se%ﬁal.s

Afts? the FPederal works ageney rsjection, the com—
mittee folt that the funds for a center would have to be raised
fronm other scurces. The final paymenl on $the lots was =ade in
Decamber, 1343._, Then represantatives from the Community Chast -
and the Douglass Comzunity Service Organization forszed a2 com-
mittes which bad been recozmended by the Chawmnatzn County Home
and ¥ar Chest Ezecutivs Commitise. The comaittes was namsd the
Nagro Somzunity and Servicemsn's Center Bullding Committes, They
mat for the firast time on ¥Yovembsr 37, 134&; uﬁ@@tnt§é§r naw
$i%l2 and diecussed some of the rscommendations mads by the
Ohampalegn Connty Home and ¥ar Gha&t“-Firﬁg preliminary plans
which had besn subnitted by the architeet firm Berger and
Kelley were considared. %1% is the sense of this comuniitas
that =2 %uaidiég ¢an bz erscted in the near fubure suck ag would
satisfy the minimum needs of the colorsd people of this
community.® 7 It.was the fesling of the commities that addition-

al facilitiss othesr than provided in ths pralizinary nlans would

8 The Champaign~Urbana saﬁriér, Novambar 30, 1944,

7 Meating of Regro Community and Bervicemen's Center Bullding
Committse, wminutes for November 27, 1844.
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be desirable if funds wers sufficient. They alss discussed the
sparation %Qd zzintansnce of the Center. The plan was that the
building was to e desded %s the eity of Champalgn and the
operation of the program and waintenance of the building would
be under the supsrvision of the Chaspaign Recreation Comwission.®
The Chazpaizn Reecreation Commission had indicated ite willing-

ness on Novemwber 15, 1944, fto "assume a2ll operating and

B

2intenance obligations in the svent that a new Negro Comuunity
Center Bullding is sreched 2ad the title deeded to the ocity of
Gh&mp%igs”&.

Prom the 1944 Chzupsiga County Home snd War Chest
oampalgn conducted in the f£all of 1943, $2,500.00 had been
allcoated from its surplus for the Negro Community Center.i©
In the last part of November, 1844, the Chempesign County Houwe
and War Chest Fzecutive Comnittes consldered. 2 proposal that
helf of 1tz £34,000.00 sarplue ($17,000,00) or hend be zllocsted
to the constructicn of a colored comrunity aén%ar in Hortk
Champaign. Although the Bwaé& of the Home snd War Chest was -
voted in fsvor of the proposal, they subzitted the propeszl to
21l of the 12,500 chest suvseribers. This ?%ﬁ done by sending
& letter to each doner, presenting the proposal with the facts
2%t band and giving hizm an opoortunity to vote for or sgainst

the expenditure. (See Appeniixz B)

8 ﬁaeting of Eegré $6§mu§ity and Service ¥en's Centsr Building'
Commitiee, minubes for November A%, 1844.

9 Letter from Recrestion Oomrission to Exsative Secrstary,
Community Chest, November 15, 1844. :

10 Champaign News-Oazetts and thxpaign Urbana Courier,
Hovaamber 30, 1944.




Toin City Community Committes Plan for a 1
: Compunity Center

&% the time the Chest was considering the proposal 10
ugse part of the surplus monsy of the 1943 campaign, the Twin
City Community Committes, a newly formed organization to promots

« the broad comwunity needs of the Champsign-Urbana community,

sxpreszed its interest in the Douglsss Comsunity Center and wanted
to ce&gar&ta financially and in any other way they could. The g ﬁ
joint Advisory Gauna;i of the;?@in Gity community committes was%
made up of both Wegro and white members. When the Twin City i !
Community Committes learned that the Negro Community and Service-
men's Center Building Committees were planning the maintenance

and opsration of the Centsr to be under the Champaign Recreation
Department and the building to be deeded tc the city of | E
Ghﬁﬁpaign, thay felt that it meant the Center would be involved
in city politics and possibly be shuttled around. Thsir belief
#88 expressed by their chairman in s letter to the subscribers ;

of the Champaipgn County Home and War Chest which was addrsssed

Fellow Citizen: "We do not belisve that the cltizens
¢f Champaign County wish that thelr Community Chest
becone involved in city politics. ¥Welther do we
~believe that the citizsns of Champaign County wish
that the nesded solution of serious problems con=
cerning the Negro minority and the entire Community
become involved in ¢ity politics ... ¥e renew our
S ; ' previously reiterated conviction that the greatest
nesd of the Negro minority is for sn organization of
its own which can mee$ %o discuss without interference
s e - o : . its major probleme, and tc seek thelr sclution through

il Letter Dscember 18, 1944, to FELLOY CITIZEN from Donzld 4.
Taft, Chalrman of the ETxeckive Comulttee of the Joind
Advisory Council of the Twin City Community Comwittee.
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The Twin City Community Council wrote %o Mr. Clifford
Spaw, at that time Director of the Division of Delinguency for
the State of Illinois, for information concerning the operation
of community centers, privately controlied and with trained
directors. Mr. fhaw sent a ragressﬁ%&tive‘%@ Champaizn %o i

survey the situation to deterumine whether the Negrou people in

the ccmpunity were.rsady to take the leadership aaa~aar%y the )
Tesponsibility of such 3 project. M7, Shawl's belief is that

natural leaders from &ithia groups should be used and their
future leaders will grow out of thst axperi@nae.lg The
repreeentative made a short survey. His statement to the Twin
City Community Committee was that a éafini%a ;saé for such s
center existed and that the people in the community were anxious

to take responsibility for its orogram. As a result of this

stztement the Twin Gity Gammuaity Committee took a firm ap@saitien
t0 the plaa pr@aeated hy t&& ¥egro Community and Servicewea's f
Bui;ﬁzng Comuwities. The chairman of the T c G ¢ made this |

statement: "Favoring a self-help plan in which ownership would

rest in & joint bi-racial commission and management would be in
the hanﬁsyaf the colored group with advice @f‘a bi-racial géoap
the Twin City Comwmunity Committee and i%s aﬁviﬁexykaaaﬂcil have

cpposed the Chest arrangements.® 13

 The Douglass Community Service Organization was

12 Intervies with Professor Domald A. Taft, April 1948, |

13 Statement by Professor Taft, Chairman of the Twin ity
cgmwuaigy Qcmmittﬁs, in the Gham§&iwa—§rbaaa Courier, 1944.




opposed to the position of the Twin City Comwunity Committes and
declared that a2 positiorn for ®seli-help center® did not repressnt
the vieswpoint of ths masses of the eglorasd paopls in the community.
Poliowling is the s?&temaﬂs which they had published in ths
Qhamgaiga-ﬂrbaa& Courier Newspapar:

#It appears that s numbsr of the Home and ¥ar Chast
subscribers are confused by the lsettar received from
Profsssor Donald Taft, Chairman of the Exzeculive Commitiss
. ; . R o af the Advisory group of the Twin City Community Committes.
R o R L T R ' Some think that they are to decide as to whether thay

: : xish the proposed Wegro Community Center bullding to be
ownad by the city Recrsation Commission or whether it
shall be privately ownad and controlled.?

BThis is not the case. As it apopears o us there is /
no alternative. The only qusstion is whether we have/
& city o¥nsd bullding or no building at all as thara,
aTe no other provivions »ids in the money already
raised or that offered by the Chest providing the o
subscribsrs agres.? |

SR a "The sffort for a comsunity bullding was begun in 1941
LR 4 e e by the Douglass Community Serwice Organization. The
R o . ' Cmovement was supported by thirty~two Wegro Civie,
R Socizal, and Fratsrpal organizations of the twin cities.®
e ) e P “Negro citizens of the community have contributed
' I TR AT TR e . £3,000.00 to the building fund with the andsrstandiﬁg

: - ~ and knowledge that the bullding wonld become the

property of the eity.®

FEL g A STRT R R s A e e e ' "The five Negro members of $he joint Advisory Counmcil
LR L L s ST of thé Twin City Community Committee have approved this
B LA B S L T ' plan, and two of its wembers served on the campaign
L for funds committse. This however, was before the
Twin City Community Committes was orgarized.®

®The Chest committse plans to supplemant the fund
originally promised but later refused by the federal
governmsnt.®

e R 1 #¥hile the Twin City Community Committestls lstter may
e P BT I VIS N L AR A ~ meaet unanimous approval of the five white and five
e ‘ o cclored mabersof its advisory group, the Chest proposal
Pt R e T s T rit s - 4 mests the aporovel of the masses of Wegroes who are to
served by it, and the massas fgel that the Chest
proposal gives the only assurance of a bullding and of
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a permanent maintenance and program.®

*Fe 4o not feel that the ¢ity ownership of such a build-
ing w11l =ake it s political football any more than our
eity 1ibrary or hospital, wshiech are clty owned, and tax
sunnorted, ¥

*"Too much emphasis cannct be placed on the nsed for such
& building, and its use will be more urgent when our bHoys
return from the war to a rehabilitatiocn Drogran.®

*The committee of the Douglass éomfunity Service Organ-
ization urges that you sisn snd vote favorably on the
Fome and War Chest proposzl as a delsy or an attempted
change of policy may mean the loss of s much-nesded
building.n 14

Foliowing the tan .3y pariod allotted for voting adon
the use of half of the Chest surplus funds, the vobting indicated
that the majority of the Chest subscribsrs were in favor of the
pré;sﬁal.iﬁ "With this favorable expression from the Chest éubf
aeribara, the Board felt that 1t was empowered to sllocate the
£€17,000.00 of the Chest surplus to the Douglass Community Center
bullding,

The Champaizn Civie Foundation was formally asked to
accept the title of the Douglass Community Center bullding. This
Foundation was oreated in Februsry of 1944 when one of the
citizens made a gift of %ﬁ,aao.ee to the city. 1It was ersatad
7 as a non-profit corporation to accent and administer zifts and
bequests for civie, bensvolert, educational, and charitable
purposes bveneiiting the oity of Chaxpaisn and its citizens.
Although the initial gift was made without restrictions or

qualifications the by-laws of the Foundation Eﬁve besn drawn

14VThe Champaign-Urbana Courier ﬂawsgapsr, December, 1944.

15 gge Anpendix ©
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so that it may also accept grants te bg sdministered for spscific
purposes,18

The'§§§§?§1§¥Ngiﬁiﬁwf§§g§§§§§22¥aﬁ asked tc accept the
titls of the building because the comeittes felt that since it
was 2 non-profit, nom-political organization, it would reassurs

those individuals and groups who bad opposed the Chest plan of
17

cperation of the ﬂe@%nﬁity Center. _
On January 16, 1945, in a meeting of the Board of
Directors, the Champalgn Civie Fsun&%tian resolived to accept
the title to the bullding that was to be the community center.
The Twin City Community Committee expressad their‘
approval of this plan to deed the propossd compunity center to
g.,ggg;—-mnma&z body.+8 However, the Committee still supported
tgg;igga to have s program of sdult and childhood sducation and
welfare that f21l outsids the regular work of the Recreation
Comuniseion., The Comnitiee informed the Eagrg G@&%umity and
Servicemen's Building Comwittee sbout the poesibility wf
securing trained lessdership through ¥r. Clifford Shaw. This
could be donz at stats expense if it was aiaar that all grsugs'
were harmoniously cooperating on.the éréjsét(zs The Twin City
Community Committee felt that such 2 worker would in no way

interfer with the regular program of the Recreztion Gemaissian,

16 The Champaign News-Gaszette, February 37, 1944

17 wznzerviﬁﬁ Juns 1248 with Hr. Lyle CGallivan, Zxecutive Secre-

: tary of the Comwunity Chest at the time project wm=zs Begun.

18, Latter to Y¥r. &alliv&a fr@& ﬁr@. é % Slev&nger, Sﬁeretary
o Ty e b D Uiy Qam%anit? C&gﬂittee, Jaﬁﬂafy 17, 1%&5 :

19

Letter to the uemmuﬁity Chast Exscutive Secretary, ¥r.
Gallivan from Professocr Donald Taft, Janusry 17, 1845
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but would reenforce it. The Twin City Comrunity Council asked
that the Community Chest Building Comzittee of the ¥egro

| Community Center meet withk Mr. Shaw %o investigate a possible
plan. 2 joint meseting was held on January 30, 1845, although
¥r. Shaw w»ae not prﬁaéﬁt. Ho decisicn was =made a3t $his time
and another meeting was c¢alled for Fabruary.

On the first of February, the Regcreation Commission
formally passed a resolution to agcept the responsibility of the
cperation and mzintsnance of the Douglsss Comsmunity Center. The
Cbampaign Recrestion Commission then lsased the building from
the Chempalgn Civie Foundation for $1.00 per yesr. This is the
present plan of operation and maintenance,

On February 12, 1945, = report on money available up to
that time showsd $31,375.00. Items for the building expense
ware listed as f&llews:aa

Base bid $29,481.00
f4ddition to gym 3,388.00
Extending meeting room ~ 840,00
4dding 20 x 30 1,738.00

On February 231, 1945, the Negro Comnunity and Ssrvice-
men's Center building coumitise met. Bothing ﬁéfinita %ag done
concerning the oroblen of securing a dir&atarlat this time.

The balance on hand which had been collected from the contri-
butions and fund drives was voted to be placed in the h&a@s of
the building committee o be ﬁﬁ&dbin the constiruction of the
Negro Community building. Thirty-thres thousand dollars in

Negro Comuunity and Servicemen's Building Committes, #inutes

of Februasry 13, 1945 meeting.
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cash was available at that tisme.

In a letter dated Fsbruary 33, 1945 %o ¥r. Isazac Kuhn,
treasursr of the U 8 O Fupd Drive in 1942, the Txscutive
Secretary of the Community Chest stated that the building
committes for ths Hegro Servicemen's and Community Bullding was

in peed of additional funds for the erseiion of the building.

It was the undgrstanding of the comnittse members that a balance
on hand of $897.78 frow the 1943 U 8 O campaign 2t1ll existed,
and they reguested that this amount be allocated o uss in the
construction of the building.gl In a rsport on &@ﬂﬁributisﬁs‘
%o the Negro Servicemen's and Community Center, ths smount of
$1,005.41 labeied U S O Fund was alloeanted to the building fund.
{See appendix. D.)

The Douglass Comwunity Service Organizstion had con=
ducted a2 funds camwpaign shich brough in &ﬁditigﬁal funds amocunt-
ing to $1,600.00. Other funds were gifts contributed by
Champaign and Urbana citizens, organizatiocns, and business firms.

On February 13, 1945, the contracts 82 yere let to
bagin bullding the Center. OSoms revisions of the plans which

would zive additional space and facilitia& in the bullding were
added when 1% was apparent that sufficient money was av&ii&%lg.gs

The first spade of dirt for the ersetion of the
buiiding @28 turned Fabruary 18, 1345, by & young Sarviceman

frowm Champaign #ho was home on furlough at that time,

381  Lettsr to Mr. Isamc Kuhn, treasurer of 1942 U § O Campaign,
from ¥r. Lyle Gallivan, Exscutive Secoretary Community Chest,
Fsbruary 33, 1845, ' ‘

32 gee Appandix E
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The furnishings for the Cemter were secured through
the Unitsd Sarvice Organization from U 8 O units that were baing
closed. The major part of the furniturs was received frowz the
U 8 O Center in Mzcomwb, Illinois, in July befors %the building was
e@&xa@ for use. _

. The building was completed in the middile of September
and the official ¢pening and dedicetion was held Sunday,
Seplember 33, 1845. The program was conducted by the Coumunity
Chest and Building Commitise members. The two msyors of the
twin cities wers present. WNearly thrse hundrsd people whe;haa
waited and worked for over fivs years sttended the d&ﬂic%tieu
to see the Centsr in rsality, |

Haintenance and Operation

4. TFinance
The Champaign Recreation Com:ission assumed the
adeinistrative duties and fimancial obligationms of operating and
maintaining the Center as had been sgreed which amounted to
approximately #8,000.00 s ysar. In order %o'maiatain an ade-
cguste program which would serve the comrunity snd &1§§ the

servicemen, government funds which had besn granted from the

-

Federal Works Agency for the Lashead School U § 0 Center in 1943
were avallable until June 30, 1946. By that time the number of
Hegro ssrvicemen siationed in the chaﬁpaign ares had diminished
and the funds were discontinued for that reason. To offset the
loss of federal assistance and %o help with the servicements DPO-
gram which was still in sffect, aprlication was made to the

Rational United sarvica‘erganiaatiaa for funds. The ap-lication
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w53 approved and & grant of £200.00 per month for six momthe was

wade beginning July 19848. The funds were %o be administersd by

o o o ' : - I . the U § O area council for salaries and other expenses of a
recreation progran for Nsgro servicemsn. These funds were not to
@é@a through the city departuent of f%cr&&tisn.aé Bowever, the
U 8 0 funds were depositad with Reersstion Commission. The R T .
£200.00 allottment was cut to $175.00 per month Janusry, 1947
because the U S 0 Area Council fslt that there was not us gresd
& nsed at that tim@.gﬁ

In Harch of 1947, the U S8 0 funds were raduced %o

2100.00 & aonth and s%eggaé3aatifﬁiy tha faiia&ing July. 'Siééa
then fin&asial.suppcrt of the Center has besn borne by the
Recreation Ga&wis@ian &upﬁiﬁmﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ aecasioaally by eonbri-
rutions from iﬁtarestsﬁ iﬁii?ﬁ&ﬁ&lﬁ and @rganiﬁwtz@ns. i

Beecauss the Advisory Commitites and the exscutive

dirsctor of the Center felt that the finsncial support wag‘
inadscusts for the program iﬁvsgér%ﬁiﬂu; &ﬂ“liaaticn wag nade to
$he Chempaizn Community Chest April. :;ss, 1948, for sdditional
funds, o

Out of the 83.000.00 - £7,000.00 budget supplied by
the Champaign Recreation Commission for Douglaes caatﬁé, 8
litile over 8$5,000.00 is spent for the combined s%}arias of the

gxecutive director, assistant diractor, and custedian. Heal,

0
bt

ﬁsws-@a%stte, Jﬁly’i?, 1948§ aﬁﬁhéngﬂsﬁwég 19@8.
Mr. Taylor Thomas, Director of Douglass Community Center
38 petter to Champaign Community Chest from lrs. Odelia ¥Wesley,

Secretary of Advisory Board, Douglass Gammunity Center,
April 38, 1248

sy
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light, water, and program equioment just be paid frosm the balancs
of the meney.gv For this reason, the Advisory Committes falt
justifisd in asking for aporoximately 25,000.00 %o supplement
ths amount that was =2llotbed ths Center by the Recrsation
ﬁaﬁ%issﬁaﬁ.%s-
The apriication was rsferred to the Council of Soeisl
Agencies for 1%s regommendation., Ths Council had sztablished
a apecisal committes to s¥udy this guestion. Ths recomzsndation
to ths Council of Social Agencies was;
"l. That the Couneil of Social ﬁg&%ﬁiaﬁ #8% thse Community
Chest for a clarification of Chest policy in regard
to furnishing funds for agsncles supported in
whole or in vart by publis funds,
2. That th@ Council of Social Agencies ask the Community
Cheet for an opinion 28 %o the poesibility of the
Chest supoorting Douglass Community Center if the
Center wgre to no longer receive any publie funds.
3. That the Council exprass i1%s willingness to mske a
detailed study of the program of Douglass Community
Center, if such study ie st11l desired by %the
Community Chest sfter their ccasideration of points
no. 1 snd 2 sbove.®
Tt mas the belief of the Board of Directors of the
Council of Social Agencies that *there was » resal daager of
the Chest supplementing public funds since such a poliey would .
make 1t poseible and probable that the public agencies would
tend %o decrease their proportionabe share, and would open

the door to recussts for Chest funds from all sorss of publicly

27 1interview with Wr. Taylor Thomss, Director of Douglass Genier,
Juns 1948 ' ,

=8 Letter to Champaign Community Chest from ¥rs. Odelis Tesley,

- Secretary of Advisory Board, Douglass Centsr, tpril 28, 1848

39 Takxen from the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Dirsctors
Community Chest of Champalgn County, July 14, 1948




permanent director wa2 emploved the First of November 1945 and

50 From the minutes of a meesting ef the Board of Diregctors of
Council of Boclal Agenciss, July 2, 1848
31 | |

a5

supported agenciss.® 30

£1lthough they recognized the walues of Douglass Commun~—
ity Center, the Dirsctors of the Community Chest dsclared that
their policy was not to supplement an agenecy which is operated

with tax-raised funds. A% that time the Community Chest woted

that they could not see any possidbility of supporiing entirely
the Couglass Community Cantsr, ot
) B. Pasrsonnsl

‘Fhen the Center was cpened in Septembar 1845, the two
U 8 0 smployees - director and sesistant for the U 8 0 program
eonducted io ga%he&& Grade School were smploved on a temporary
bzeis $o begin the Douglass Center program. Both women wars
planping %o terminate their servies in the U S 0 as soon a§ ths

Board would replace them with permanent emplovees, %ha

continued until his resignation effsective August 1948, The

dirsctor was without an asslstant until ths first of January
1248. Within the next two vears and a balf, the Centsr has
sunployed four sesistant directors and thres custodians. 4
young woman ¥38 employed in 1948 as sssistant direotor and j
in charge of the girls sctivities. Ths rapid turnover of :
enplovess has wade it difficult to inmsugurate and maintsin 3

progran for young pesople and adults who were unaccusiomed %o

Frow the minutes of $he mesting of the Board of Dirsciors
of the Comzunity Chest of Champaign County, July 14, 1948.




using fseilities sush as Douglsss Center oan provide.”3
' C. Advisory Coanities

The formation of the 2dvisory Committes for Douglsss
Center wss begun in November 1844 in a me<ting of ths Negro
g@ﬁﬁﬁﬁi@? and Servicenments Center Building Committes sz
followey TFewmw=Tha genersl supsrvision of the faellities of the
building should bz turned over to en Advisory Commities, the
majority of whom should be of the colored rage® 35 and bpased
Cupon A motion propossd snd earried which conveved thelr thinking
in rapsrd ¥o Torming an Advisory Comritiee,

& jolnt mesting of the Champalign Recreation Commission
snd the Negro Community and Servicemen's Building Bem&ittse wss
held on Eeaa&%&r 11, 1944, %o discuss the posaibility of
forelng an Advisory Conmittes to sssuwe the reeponsibility of
making policies for the operation of the Canter. It was hoped
that such 2 Committee wounld have 2 majority of Wegross to work
with the Recrestion Commission in the over-sll planning of the
progran for the proposed vuilding. There was some opposition
expressed, but the gensral feeling of the two comzitiess was
.tﬁ&t<thﬁ plan as proposed w#as fzasidle and could be opseratad
3%38&33?&11?;34

The Twin City Comnmuniiy Committee expressed similar
recommendations. They felt that %hé"gggg;ary'@e@nciz for
Douglass Center should be a bi-racial council and should

Ppa

F I#t&rvie@ with Director of Douglass Center, ¥r. Tayler Thomss
June, 1948 ' , & * yie :
33 ..

Hinutes of the ¥egro Community and Ssrvicements Center
Building Committee Heeting, November 37, 1944

34 . P , ; , . P
cint me=tin f Champalign Recreation Commission and Neesro
9ilding Gomgittes, Docesber 11 1044. 8
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earry a maximuam of responsibility in deeciding policies and to
convince the public that ths welfars of the ¥aegro Community #3111
‘ne m first objsetiva. The Commitites recommsnded %hat the Chest ‘
maka provieion for regulsr wmoathly msetinge of the vproposed
T . o e : '§&1VB@rg—$aunsil and thset ths sdussiional authorities of both

citier be renresented.

“Phe Buiiding Comnmittee decided thst the Advisory

Committes for ths Center would consist of eleven meubers who

%would sssiet in the operation of the new Douglass Community

Center. This comnittee is %o act snd assist the Champaign

Recreation Commission activitiss of the Center so that the
/

bullding may be of the grestest benefit tothe inhabitants to

be served.® 38 ?h@~ﬁ@mmaai§?~g£@ﬁ§$ agked o @@ﬁ@igt.

“rayraaaﬁ%&QQV$$ in forming the Advisory Committes were o
Champsign Board of Eduecstion, one member; Urbama Bosrd of

Education, one member; Champaisn Reereation Comsission, ons

member; Champatgn S@ﬁﬁty»ﬁﬁ&munity Chest, two members; and
six membars to bQ slected a8t & msg%ing of the adult Negro
citizens of Champalign Co'lunty by privats ballot. *The first

slection shsll be a% the o211 of the Building Coamittes of

Douglzss Comsunity Osnter and yeurly elections shall be held
thereafter during the month of April under the supervision of

ths Douglass Psrk Community Center Advisory Committes. At the

Tein City Community Committes meesting, minutes for January
12, 19458

) 38 pettere to Ohawpaign Board of EZdueation, Urbana Board of
. Educ-tion, Chompaizn County Community Chest, and Chsmpaign
Recrsation Comzission from ¥r, Lyle Galliivan, Executive
Secretary of Comwunity Chest, Harck 5, 1845,

o
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first election the two candidates receiving the largest number of
votes shall be elescted for a three yeasr term of office, ths two
raceiving the next largest nusmber of votes is ¢¢ have the tarnm
of two years and the remaining two elscted for tersms of ons vear.
At the yearly election held thereafier two shall bs elected for
a terwn of three vears.

®The other five members sre appointed. At the first
regular meeting of the Advisory Committes, the members apocinted
$§ali by iot determins their length of sppointment. (.o mémber

to serve for one year, two members for two years, and two

menbers for thres ysars. Succeeding appointments shall be for

three years.® 37
‘ The Douglass Center Bullding Committee reaiized %hat

th& bullding t-ey bad helpsd erect and the program put into

action was just 2 beginning in meeting the need that exists in

the t#in cities ftoday. The center fesls limited in its ability
" to function adequately because of the limited budget ami
small steff.

57 Ibid, note 33

#
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Chapter III
PROGRAM OF DOUBLASS COMMUWITY CENTER

First Year

¥hen the Community Center was opened for the first
tims in September 1945, the U § O progrs=s was brought o

Douglass Center frow the Lawhead U § O Center. The U 8 O part of

. the Center's progras was financed by federal funds under the

Federal Works Ageney until June of 1848. These federsl funds
had béen used for the Lawhesd U S 0O program. The rsmsinder of

the Center's program was operated %y,tha‘Eaer@atiéﬁ_cam@isﬁiaﬁ.

The director of the Lawhesd U § 0 was employed as. director of

the Douglass Center program on a temporary basis until a
permanent director #ss found. The assistant director from the
Lawhead U 8 O was employed as an asaiétaﬁt,&ﬂé rtemained with
%ha program until her busband who was in service xgtmxnsﬁ in
late Novembar of 1845, The Cenisr was ayﬁnyta serviceszen at
all times with Bunday evenings from sixz %o ten resarved
@syasial;y for thom. Hostssses Ware provided and the usual
aut%rtain&snt wag dancing. )
In gddition to the US O gragr&m for tha-ﬁagre
aervieeman,-aati§iti&s were began for the young people and
adults of the community. The majority of the young people
had never had the sxperience of participating in # comnunity
center program, The general conception of 3 center was a
place %o go and make friends and was a place where they could
danca. The first few monthe there wss danclng every night with

sone gams eGuipment available for such games as ping pong if
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anyons #as interested in other asctivities. i
In ¥ovember of 1945, whsn the permanent director cane

to the Center, a varisd program ¥as inaugurated. Dances warse

limited to one night 2 wesk, on Saturdays. If there was sz

gaiﬁ danes, a3 dance with aa orchestra brought eithser by the

Center or some spscial group admission was charged to cover the

axy&n&&yaf the orechestra. The pald @an@eﬁ ware usually on

Saturday nighte and when they were scheduled Friday evsnings

ﬁéﬁl& be used for free dancing nights. This policy bas been in
force for the duration of the program. Limiding the dance
righte made an opportunity for other types of ae@ivity?/gltheagh
i% wga met at firet with disapproval of the voung péagja Clubs
wara %tartaﬁ for the girie and boys. In the first year there
were two basketball teams for boys: & junior team and a senior
teaz. The Junior team was made up of boys who were junior and
senior: high age or older. A girl's basketball team was also
started for the high seboel age. Five clubs wers orgacized ia
that first year. Thres were girl's clubs; one, junior high

age; and two, senior high ags. Thess clubs were primarily
gocial in their activities. The one group that was organized
for the boys at that time was an orchesirs made up of the high
school age. Ths group paid dues which were used for the boys —
t0 take their lessons for the particular instrument that thsy
had chosan t0 play. Their seelings were spent in praciticing
together as an orchestra. Some of the members.became proficient
ancugh té have several bands saeé them as professional players.

This eventually was the main reasocn that the group disbanded about
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a year after its formation.
The Tesn-age Club was forwed in the sarly sumwer of
1945 for girls and boys who were in their %eens. They elscted
a m3y0r and ssbup 2 police force. One of their main purposes
'ﬁgs to help lmprove the conduct of the particivants of the Qenter,
Those bslonging to ths Tesp-age Olub were entitled to 2 member-
sﬁip carﬁ which gave the mewmbers entrance to all Douglass Center
events at half price. ¥ach ocard was authorized by the Dirsctor's
signature. Ths adult leadership of the club was under the
assiézaa% director until she resigned in the f3ll of 1845. There
a8 ny one to take her place immediatsly and the Teen-age Club
graduslly disbanded. |
| » The activities that first summer were cowfined

primarily to a pregraw in the Park. Organized games included
softball, shufflsboard, hopseoteh, horseshos, and croguet.
Tournaments wers Leld among the various city parks. For fhese
activities conducted in the Park the age division for ths boys
was 6-8, 9-11, 12-14, 1517 and 18 years old and up. For the
girls the age division was different. Thers wers three graﬁps;
sgnior bigh, junior high and zrads schoocl. The prograx that
first summer has been the pattern for the following summsrs
and has changed vasry 1ittle.

A Douglass Center Field Bay #as insugursted the first
summéer that the Center was open. The day was set aside for all
boys and girls to participats in various compstitive soorts.

The entire day was glven.over %o these events. Awards in the

form of ribbons wsre presented to the winners in the various
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contests. The first summer the boys participsted enthusiastic-
ally, but the girls showsed wvery iittle interest in participating.
The Douglass Park Field Day has become s tradition in the
progria,.

The Douglass Park Field Day is similar to the city-wids
field day which ie held at the end of the summer and includes all
the sity parks. I% is eallsd a Gypsy Round-up. Evsryons takes =
his own lunch and plans to spend the entire day.

Second Year

In the second year of the progras the athletic
program was enlarged. The boys basketball teams wers betisr
organized and participated in the city league games and oftsn
in cut-cf-town games. The high g@%mai girishfafmeﬁva~ba&ka§ball
team which w38 most sctive and had spseiiic games séh&ﬁal&d to
play. They also ﬁé;@ﬁ put~of-town ganses,

In the fall of 1948 thers ﬁ@t@wﬁhé&$ mors clubs added,
4 sewing clubs ¥hose membership consisted of adult wowen was
%gga&. Thers were no sewing machines available so their sctive
iti;s #ere confined.to handwork, knitting, and crotcheting. The
group consistaed of approximatsly thirty-five wembers and now is
ons of the most aetive clubs at the Center. |

4 Girl Scout troop was organizsd that fall and met at
Douglass Center. The group #as extremely active until it lost
its ls&dershi§ a yoar after they ware organiszed. éﬁothéz elub
that formed at that time was a girls drill team of aporoximately
twenty-five members, age 10-18. They met weskly for drilling snd

wers dependent on voluntesr ieadership. The team pariicivated
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ié cut~of-town contests and was often 3 winner. Fhen thsir
isader w¥as uasble to meed with the group it meant is disbandon-
ment, » | |

% young girls marrisd group was also formed that year.
Tﬁeir aetivitiss are primsrily social; dances and picnies. They
have contributsd to the Center's prograx finaneially and bhava
given suchk things as venetian blinds for two of the ma§tiﬁg
rooms. This gréup is also active at ths pressnt time.

In that year, the University Young %ossn's Christian

Associztion sent two volunteer students fo assist with some of
the groups of girls which net éuriﬁg the school year. The
groups wers malnly play groups and met once s wesj ending

their program with a picnic. The leaders take their groups

to the annusl Y W © A doll show which is held at the University

_Y ¥ C A on the campus.

Third and Present Ysar
In the fall of 1947 several new groups wers organized.
On2 of the new grouns was 2 c¢lub for girle ages twelve o
fourtsen. The girls who were the first membere felt that they

wanted toc have their membership ¢leossd and thst they would vote

in any new membsrs., They named their club the Poliy Pigtails
after the nams of cne of the popular magazines for teen ags
giilﬁ. Their program varies from games to bhandicraft. The
climax of their activities culminated inm a spring carnival #hich
they thamsselves sponscr. They plan the entire progras and invite

all those who participate in the Douglass Centar prograzm and

the community to attend. They charge 2 small adsission fes bscause
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one of thelr purposes in giving the ecarnival is %o make money,.
The Carnival program is zade up of side showe ani the syaning
ends wiih the main attraction which is similsr o 2 variaty
show. Ususlly no other Cents., grouns are invited to participats
in the show; however, a rhythm bsnd =as forzed in February of
1848 and they wer: asked %0 piay as a specially numbsr. This
club aisc raises ﬁéﬁﬁwaf@% concessions at\th@ basketball games

and the dances held at the Center. The girle usually bring the

2]

weiners and buns froz kome in order %o sell at 2 greater profit.

[3

incther group thst was begun in the f211 was the
Brosnie Scoubt trocp. This group was zotive uﬁtil‘thg'fira% of
1648, when i1t was turned over to volunteer leadership due tc the
linited time of the assistant director. The troop gradusily
discontinued bsesuse there did not seem to be suffiecient intere
est on the part of the velunteaers.

A boys choral growp was orgsnized that f211 wnder the
isadership of 2 student man at the Univeraity of Illinnis. Sone
of their nmestings ware spent in listening and discussing soums
tyvee of music which gave ths group zn undarstanding of kinds
of music. When the student w#as no longer able to continue with
his leadership, ths diraatar of the Center took over the leader-
sbhip of the group. 4 mized ohorus was formed specifically for
the Christsas season that winter under the guldance of the
director of the Center. They were asked %o sing carols down
town Champaign.

Also 2% this time the Champaign-Urbana Kindsrgarten

#as organized to provide a program for ths vary voung children,
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The kindergarten was staried sgain af$er the Pashingion Street
Nursery in Chaspsign was closed when ¥ P A funds were no longey
available. A commitiese of mobhers both Negro and white mat in
the summsr of 1847. Thsey corsulied Dr. Perkins, Professor of
Homs Egonsuios, at the University of Illinsis, who specinlizsas

in Child Devslopment. She gave her assistance in supsrvising
the project that was o begin in %he fall. The Champalgn-

Orbana Kindergarien cmﬁmi%tag basgen making plsns %o raisge

funde and to collset equipment to uss for the @in&?rgaxt@ﬁ.

When the kindergarten was fiéa% opaned, the éﬁt@ilm@ﬁt was
timited dus to a swall s¢sff. Dr. Perkins was the supervisor
and thers ware two pald Negro Ysachars undar her. The remainder
of the teachers were Tecruited from volunteer University students
and community psopls. This was not s satisfactory arrangesent
becauss the volunteers could not always be availabls. The second
semaster, Dr. Parking remsined as aupérviﬁsr with two paid
teachers. The rest of the staff werse University graduste

gtudents in Child Develovment who were regquired to do sowme

? practice teaching.

The kindsrgarten is for both Negro and white and is set
up for only ages four and five with the present snrollemtn of
fifty %o sixty. The kindergarten committes looks forward to
the tims when the younzer children can have a 8isilar prograns.
The kigéargarzgﬁ ig open from 1:30 - 3:30 p.a. each afterncon
Honday through Fridsy, exceot during the summer wmonths. It is
the hope of the Committee that in the futurs they @iil be able

tc provide 3 full davy nursery progranm,
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The kindergartsn is independent financially of
Douglase Center and has its own adivisory comsittee made up
of both Negre and white members. The kindergarten pays the
Becreation Commission for the heat, 1ight znd water that are
ﬂéﬁd #hile they have possession of the buildiang from 1:30 to
3:30 p.m. and supplement the jsnitor's salary. Janitorial
services are nesded $o move the kindergarten ecuipment fxam_
the gym to the etorage roow in order that the Douglsss Center
progran can ¢onticue. Thie moving of the equipment 1s necessary
each afterncon that the kinpdergarten is in aﬁésﬂgn,'

| In Februsry 1948 the Divigion of Bocisl ®elfare
Administration at the University of Illimsis,m&de arrangenents
%ith the Champalign Recrsstion Commission and Douglass Center for
a fleld work placement for two studernts in group work for one
sezmester. The man student started a boye group ages eleven to
fsartasn #ith their interest focused on & rhythm band as their
activity. The group began making their instruments, snd then
they lesarned how to play with several Jazz phonograph records,
The peak of their sotivity #as being asked by the Polly Pigtails
to participate in the Spring Carnival. This group met weekly
on Baturday mernings,

The other student who was a girl worked ﬁitﬁ two of
the groups of girle. One group had been formed fros %ha girls
#ho bad been active in the Brownie Troop until it was discontinued.
The group was reorganized in Fsbruary 1948 under the nams of

the Blus Pibbon Club. The girls wsre nine through twslve years

of age and were interzsted in being as much like the clly
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Pigtails as possibls. Ths situdent i%aﬁar‘ﬁ&s interssted in the
group work process and tried to usz varicus scbivities thest would
e of intersst fto the group and be valuable in ths group work
process. The zctivities wsre handicraft and sewing of skirts
iﬁ%@raparsad #ith games and a picnie.

The other group the stulent led was 2 new group made
un of voung girle frow six through eight years who wars
gonstant users of the Center on girle aftsrnoons, but for shom
) sgeciai(pragr%m kad bsen plamned. Tha sctivities werszs based
ar@unﬁ their intarssted indigsted werbaslly or by thelr bahavior.

Beside these organized groups, 1imite£ sguipment is
avzilable for yvoung people to drop in at the Center and enjoy
an bour or two of activitises of thelr own chooeing.

Ir the summer of 1948 z Boy Scout Troop wn3s started
snd 1t is hoved that it will be ables $o continus the vear round.

The Yars Mother Club which had basn formed before
thé Center %as built mests in the Center every two weaks. H¥embers
of the Club sre women who all had or have sons ip ths service.
Their purposs i i0 sssist servicsmen and the veterans in wvhate
evar way that they csn., They raice their fTunds by soocnsoring
various programs during the vear.

Outeide groups may use the Cenker building, =
rentsl fes which i used to gupplerment thse budset is assked if
the group charges admission for their event. The fes is
deterzined by the amaant the grour requesting ths Center charges

for the event they are sponsoring. OGroupg $h2t use the Jenter

ars ths Legion Auxiliary, Junior Elks, Legion Post, County
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Legion Post meetings, Masons, and Jehovabh ¥itnesses.

Adults are welcome at the Center »t ail times. Their
participation i mainly through their participation in the
groups that me<t at Douglass Centsr, but ocossionslly they uss
the Center to stop and relax and resd or play some gases.

Some of the programe that the Center sponsors sre
educational movies, ard health programs. These me-tings ususlly
etimulate discussions and are uweuslly wall sttended.

One of the smwall Tooms st the Center is being ussd for
2 llbrary. Books have besen givsn the Center frowm interassted
individuals until there are several humirsd. It was the projsct
of 2 university student ani librarian to begin eataloging the

books. This is not completed, but the books are availabls for

The Center is a wember of the ¥stional Association of
Recreztion which enzbles ite leaders to know of regreational
ideas and programs throughout the United States. Confersnces
ars held for reereational lasaders for training and exchangs
of ideas. The Center is also a wmember of the Chawmpaign Council
of Social Agencies,

The att@nﬁ&néa for the past three vears at the Center
activities is interesting ¢ note. ¥hen the Center was opened
in tha fall of 184%, the attendancs was approximately from
1,000 to0 1,100 weakly. At %ths time thst the program was changed
from svery night dancing t- one night s wesk, when groups were
being organized, and boys and girls were given sapsarate days

for their zotivitiss at the Center exeept on weskends, the
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youns peonla seemed aninterested in such 3 program and stayed

e

awav. Graduzlly as the program organization beoams more famile

‘isar to those who did participate, they convineed others that

the various sctivities wers intaresting. The attsndance

increased %o previcus asttendance and bayond. The sstimated

attandance at the present tims is nezrly 1,300 per wesk,
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CONCLUSION

The sstablishmsnt of Eéuglaas Community Center has
provided partial fulfiliment of the many nseds for the FNegro
residents of eha£§aign—ﬁrban&. The center has provided the
opportunity for these pscople for cultivating new interests and
participation in activitiss of their own choosing and often
their own ingtig&ﬁion. The yragﬁa& of %ha center has bsen built
to serve the people in many different areas of need, for
children, young peoprle and adults. Library facili%i&s are
available to them. Educational programs concerning h@glth and
welfars are brought befors the v&riaué,greu@s. The athletic
pfégrém is a large partvaf the c@n%af's sctivities for almast
. every age level. There ié some grmﬁy or club %o which 8veTry.
individusl may bﬁleng and have the experience of group
association. The programs of these groups or slabs are bullt
araﬁn& the interests under the participation of the 1§&§8?$h1§
of the Douglass Comwunity cenﬁer staff with the aid of
University Students from the Bocial Welfare &ﬁministratisn
Division or organizations such as the Yéaag Hen's ﬁhristiaa
Assoeclation or the Young %Qmen*s Christian Asaéciatien and
churches; The author who was a field work student frow the
Social Welfare Administration School at the center could
obsérva’that the program at the Douglass cemmunifyvcanter had
given its participants sn opportunity to grow and realize
many fields of inﬁeres% naver before open tc then.

The center has nevser besu undsrable $0 get and traia




leadership which has brought sbout 2 steady growth of a con-
structive program. The community has begun to realize what

a csnter can provide and have used ths faciiities available.
This growth has meant that the community center has Shought
of expanding 1%ts program, staff, and physical plant in light
of the incrsassd usage of the center and participation in ths
program. Douglsss Community Center was not planned as an

end in itsélf and is 83111 in a stage of development. The
financial status of ths centber désﬁ not allow for this szpan~
sion at the pressnt time., Effort wass made o secure Community
Chest support. The applieation was rsfused on t%e centar's
method of being financed., 8ince it has a guhlic supported
program, the policy of the Chest made it impessiéle for ths .
center to bescome a mesmber of the Chest. This seems to be &
sound poliey and it would seam that the responsibility lies
#ith the citizens of the two communities whose téxea suppord
but are inadequats for the needs of the center to be met.

The operation of the center is under the auspices
¢f the Recreation Commiseion with the pollicy making in the
kands of an advisory bosrd. This board gives the staff of
the center full power to determine how the general policy
shaﬁlﬁ be put 1nte.effset. This organization of authority
secxs to bs satisfactory and adequate for the Douglass
Community Genter. Hot only aaas'it have & responsibility to
their voard and those who participate in its program but to

the two communities 238 2 whole. This is for the ﬁsa of any

one in the twin cities and cszn never adesguately mest every

41
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parson's neads. If thie gentsr can continue in 1%s constructive

growth 1% #ill be an sxampls to the Twin Cities of ths nesd

for such & progrzas and perhaps bring about conorsie resulis,
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CHROECLOGICAL TABLE OF EVENTS

Yay - Bducation center , 707 North Fifth Street
Decerber - Recreation Center; 51k Fast Tremont Street

iecreation Center at 514 East Trezont rosold. Foved to temporary

facilities of basement C ¥ & Church.
“ormation of Douglass Community Serviee Organization.
Finaneial drive - First payment, July 1941,

SVS ¢ Center esitablished in lawhead Grade School in Champaign financed
7 Federal %orks Ageney supplemented by Shampaagq teereation Copmission.
ECG%@ eampaign in fall.

Charpaign Recreation Commission advised the Douglass Community Service
Organization that there was 2 possibility of receiving faéeral
assistance through F ¥ 4 to erset & building.

Fall -~ Petition pre&ented Lo F 8 4,

July =~ Eeeting of Champaizn County Home and War Chest and Douglass
Community Service Organization %o reconsider presenting a second
petition to ¥ W A for federal assistance for servicements and
compunity center.

August - Hayor of Champalgn asked for reconsideration of the building
project by F ¥ 4 because of the demands the war had placed on the
community.

September 10, - Application was sent Lo the Regional Federzl Works
Azency.

September 17, - Regional office ¥ W A approved project, sent applieation
to national office, Washington, D C for final decision.

October - Negro residents begsn solicitations for funds.

Hovember - Regional Jirector of ¥ W A notified the ¥ayor of Champaign
that the Hational Office had disapproved the project "withoud
prejudice,?

Roverber 15, - Chanpaign Reecreation Commission accoptéd operation and
maintenance of new comsunity cenber.

Hovember 19, «~ Chawpaign County Home and Far Chest lxecutive Committee
considered a proposal that half of its §3L,000 surplus (§17,000) on
hand be allocated to the construction of & colored community center
in Horth Champaign. ILetter sent to 2,500 Community Chest donors
presenting this proposal and asking for a wote on it.

Hovember 27, ~ Representatives from the Community Chest and the
Douglass Comuunily Serviee Orgacization formed a commiitee napmed
Negro Community and Servicemen's Center Guilding Commitiee.
Decerber - Final payrent of £375.00 made

. Deeenber - Twin City Cormunilty Committee, a newly formed organization

to prozote the broad community need of Champaizn-Urbana community,

expressed iis inter@st in Touglass Community Center. However, opposed

the proposal of the Community Thest.

Decerber - T € ¢ € sought information concernins the operation of
community centers that were privately controlled with trained

dlrectcrs from ¥r. Shaw, at that time direelor of the Division of
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Pelinguency for the State of Illinois
19kl - Decexber = The Douglass Community Service Organization was opposed to
the position of T © € € and declared that a position for "sélf-help
center® did not represent the viewpcinit of the masses of the colored
people in the community.
Following the ten day peried allotted for voting upon the use of half of
the chest surplus fund, the vobing indicated that the majority of the
ehest subscribers were in favor of the proposal. ;
1945 - January 16, - Board of Directors, Champaign Civic Foundation resolved to
to accept the title of the bullding thal was to be the Communiiy Cenier.
February 1, ~ Becreation Commission formally passed a resolution te
accept the responsibility of ithe operatlon snd maintenance of the
Douglass Comeunity Center. Leased the buliding from the Champaign
Civic Poundation for $1.00 a year. -
February 12, - The contracts were let to begir building the center.
February 18, - Building begun, First spade of dirt twrned for the
erection of the building by a young serviceman from Champaign who was
home on furlough at thal time. :
»pril - Election of Hegro mesbers jo advisory committes.
September 23, ~ Gfficial dedication of the center. ‘
September - Chaspaign Recreation Copmission assumed the adeinistration
duties and financial obligations of operstion and maintenance of the
centers , '
September - Progras began
Federal Forks Agency funds tremsferrved from U S O Lawhead Center to
Douglass Center. ' "
1946 - June 30, - F & A Funds discontinued.
July 1, ~ Douglass Center received U 8 0 funds, §200.00 per month for
six months for servicemen's program.
1947 - Janwary - U S 0 Funds cut to $175.00 per month.
' Barch - U & 0 funds reduced ito $100.00 a month
- duly = ¥ & © funds stopped entirely. _
15h8 - April 28, - Application was mede to the Champaign Compunity Chest for
additional funds for Douglass Center.
July 1 - Director of Community Chest declared ileir poliey was not to
supplement an agency operated with tax-raised funds. On that basis
application was rejected. ‘

AR
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' : APPERDIX &

Population of Champaign and Urbana
16th Census of the United Stetes 1940, Second Series
Characteristics of Population Prepared Under Supervision of
Dr. Leon . Truesdell, Chisf Statistics for Population

1930 , 19ho 1948 = ;
ne.  percent no. - percent el
Champaign o
Fnite-Native born 18,07 88.8 21,k36 89,9
o Foreign born : 669 3.3 560 1.9
Hegro 1,598 749 1,802 7.7
Other 1l ' . |
. Total 20,38  100.0 23,802 100.0
Urbana
#inite-Native born 12,311 9h.3 13,547  95.9
Poreign born 337 2.6 268 1.9
Hegro 39k 3.0 30k 2.2
1. Other - T | 13 .1 ‘,
Total 13,060 100.0 1L,132 1I00.0 20,000
Champaign-Urbana-
White=Hative born 30,351 91.3 35,033 92.2
Foreign born ohé 2.8 328 2.2
Other 29 .08 27 07
Total 33,258 100.0 37,994 100.0 33,000

* Estimate given by Champaign Chamber of Commerce
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APPERDIY B

Copy of Letter to Champaign County Home and ¥ar Chest subscriber from ¥r.
Lyle Gallivan, Zzecutive Secrebary of thiéﬁh&mpaigﬁ Community Chest, December
of 1%

Hhile this letter is obviously & form letbter, it is most important and we
sincerely hope that you read it.

1. This letter is ¥(OT paid oub of fHome and War Chest funds. Inlerssied in-
dividuals in the project mentioned below have paid the expense of this letter.

2. As you may or may not know, there has been about $13,000.00 raised (in
various funds) in our cormuniily over the past two years when it was under-
stood that the Federal Goverrment denied our petition "without prejudicef.
This simply means they dld nol think there were enough colored seoldiers &t
Chanute Field o justify them spending the money for soldier spending &l one.

HO¥W the Home and Har Chest Execubive Commitites are in receipt of a petiiion
signed by LOO Chest subscribers in which they ask that one~half of the Home
and War Chest surplus {(about 17,000 dellars) be added to the £13,000.00
mentioned above and the building be built immedialtely with the provision that

2 Chempsign Reereaticn Commission agree bo operste and neintain said
building. Your Homwe and ¥ar Chest Hxecutive Comwittee at a recent meeting
appr@ved unanimously thie petition guhgeet to-a referendum of the Chest sub~
serivers. The Champaign Hecreation Commission had agreed to operate and
maintain the building. The building when completed will be deeded to the Gxty
of Chempaign {or recreation purposes.

Your Board wishes to point oub to you that the 2,800 Hegro residents of
Champaign-Urbana have raised $3,000.00 for this building among their omn
yeap;gy {(This amshnt 18 includeﬁ in the $13,690.06 menblgneé abeve“) They
enocugh to cemplete anﬁ equip the bniléiﬁg; The prcposed balldzn% wauld
adjoin Douglass Park. Also while the war is on, the building will be used as
a center for colored soldiers.

!

For nany, many obvious reasons, we are sure you can recognize why this building

is & necessary one and in bullding it with these funds, it becomes paid for by
the FHOLE cowmmunily. ;

3. While your Board has approved this projeet, it felt thal it should not
expend cne-half of the Chest surplus for this purpose unless you and the other
12,500 Chest subseribers had an opportunity to express yourselves, 4ccording~
1y, we are enclosing & postage free, seif-addressed card on which we ask you
to express your opinion. {If you do not reply in ten days, it will be con=
sidered that you are favorable to the project and in case the vois of a
majority of the subscripiions involved is found favorable, your Beard will

so orders)

He feel that this is certainly the dewmscraitic way to handle this matier and we
hope you will give us your adviece by retum mail.®
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APPENRIX ©
Summary of Communibty Buliding Guestionnaires

Humber of replies dmount of pledges

Opposed »
Champaign and Urbans 261 $ 2,577.10
yualified
Chazpaign and Urbana 116 2,698,50
Favorable » .~
Champaign and Urbana 1,616 : 35,5L5.55
Total ‘ 2,023 - & Lo,820.15

Two thousand twenty-three repliss returned ont of the 12,500 letters sent is
anproximately one-sixth of the Chest subscribers. ZRighty-one and four tenths
percent stated definitely that they were interested in the Chest proposal

of using one-half (§17,000.00) of the Chest surplus for the Douglass
Cozmmunily Center. As was stated in the letber, those replies not returned
were to be asgumed as Tavorable.




1 84 0204
33877

100 @

APPEEDIL D

Contributions to Negro Communiiy Center %

Chawpalgn County Howe and ¥War Chest .
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$ 17,000.
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Douglass Community Center Coniracts
Cost of Center

E. H. De Atley

Base Bid

Gym Additien

38 X 20" Addition q
Increase lLouwnge, toilets & bar S
31;5?52-.933
Extyra for grading and £111

Inercase lengthe of drain
. dalks

Chaspaign Plurbing and Reéting

Base Bid
z,sﬁla:c ze toilebs
Eiltchen

2,117.00

Dexber Eleetic Company - i

. R A .  Base Bi@¢ L 960
’ Cyr Addition _ , B - kB.op

33t x 20t room 25.¢0
Increase Lounge, boilets, kitchenm, ete. 115. 00
Extra outlets o _ o 16.09
9{30.%

.

Berger and Kel}.&y

5,000 feet asphalt tile at 17 c. plus ornamentation ab 835
Legal fees and a’ssir&cting ,

Fire znd #indstors insuranee (estinate)

Total , v % 37,525.10
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